
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

      July 2, 2013 9:00 am 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Joe Brannen 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Gary Lewis 

 
3. Recognitions/Public Presentations 

A)  Retirement – George Daniels, 11 years of Service, Leaf and Limb Collection Driver, 
       Public Works Department 
B) “Recognition of the City of Statesboro 2nd Quarter Biggest Loser Winner” 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 06-18-2013 Council Minutes 
  

B) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a) Licensee:  Heath Robinson 

DBA:  NYC Pizzeria DBA Big Shows Burgers 
Location:  1212 Brampton Avenue 
Type of Alcohol License:  Pouring – Beer, Wine & Liquor 
Type of Business:  Restaurant 
 

C) Consideration of a Motion to approve “Vehicle for Hire” 
a) Boro D.D. LLC – Robert A. Oellerich(Driver) 
b) Boro D.D.LLC – Amanda Korponay (Driver) 
c) D W Yellow Cab – Michael Clamion Groomers (Driver) 
d) D W Yellow Cab – Isaac Kitching (Driver) 

 
D) Consideration of a Motion to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 2013-14: George 

Terrell Beasley requests annexation by the 100 percent method of 57.50  acres of 
property located at  Cawana Road into the City of Statesboro and for said property to 
be zoned from R40 (Single Family Residential Bulloch County) to CR (Commercial 
Retail) and  PUD - Residential (Planned Unit Development) City of Statesboro (Tax 
Parcel Number 107 000005 000). 
 

E) Consideration of a Motion to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 2013-15: Walter Ray 
Beasley requests annexation by the 100 percent method of 60.92  acres of property 
located at  Josh Hagin Road into the City of Statesboro and for said property to be 
zoned from R40 (Single Family Residential Bulloch County) to R-8 and R-10 (Single 
Family Residential) City of Statesboro (Tax Parcel Number 107 000009 000). 



 
 

F) Consideration of a Motion to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 2013-16: George 
Terrell Beasley requests annexation by the 100 percent method of 68.08  acres of 
property located at Josh Hagin Road into the City of Statesboro and for said property 
to be zoned from R40 (Single Family Residential Bulloch County) to R-10 (Single 
Family Residential) City of Statesboro (Tax Parcel Number 107 000012 000). 
 

G) Consideration of a Motion to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 2013-17: George 
Terrell Beasley requests annexation by the 100 percent method of 38.73  acres of 
property located at S and S Railroad bed Road into the City of Statesboro and for said 
property to be zoned from R40 (Single Family Residential Bulloch County) to R-15 
(Single Family Residential) City of Statesboro (Tax Parcel Number 107 000014 000). 
 

6. Consideration of a Motion to approve 2nd reading of Ordinance 2013-13: An Ordinance 
Amending Certain Sections of ARTICLE II of Chapter 74 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances to increase the excise tax on public lodging. 
 

7. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2013-23: A 
Resolution Exempting Certain Vehicles from Marking Requirements for One Year 

 
8. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a 

contract for services with the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to market downtown 
Statesboro by operating and managing the Averitt Center for the Arts, using proceeds 
from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 
 

9. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a 
contract for services with the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority/Main Street 
to market downtown Statesboro, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 

 
10. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a 

contract for services with the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. to market 
Statesboro and Bulloch County, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 

 
11. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to convert the section of Seibald St, from 

Hill Street to Sharpe Street, to a one way street. 

12. Consideration of a Motion to approve application for the 2013 BJA Justice Assistance 
Grant (JAG) in the amount of $19,643.00.   $10,803.65 to be utilized by the Statesboro 
Police Department and $8,839.35 to be utilized by the Bulloch County Sheriff’s Office 
 

13. Consideration of a Motion  to award the contract to R. Roese Construction for the Gas 
System Expansion in the area of Hwy 67 & Joe Hodges Hill in the amount of 
$159,790.50 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion to Approve cost proposals from Georgia Power and Frontier 
Communications in the total amount of $49,000.00 to relocate existing utilities along 
Gentilly Road as part of the Gentilly Road Sidewalk Installation Project.  Cost included 
in the project budget which is funded by 2007 SPLOST. 



 
 

 
15. Consideration of a Motion to award the bid contract to Complete Sitework Services LLC 

in the amount of  $2,249,999.87 for the I-16/U.S. Highway 301 Utility Infrastructure for 
the City of Statesboro contingent upon the written approval from the Bulloch County 
Board of Commissioners. 

 

16. Consideration of a Motion to award the bid contract to CB&I Inc. in the amount of 
$2,093,000.00 for the alternate composite elevated storage tank for the I-16 Highway 301 
One Million Gallon Elevated Storage Tank contingent upon the written approval from the 
Bulloch County Board of Commissioners 
 

17. Other Business from City Council 
 

18. Public Comments (General) 
A) Mr. Bill Thomas request to speak with Council 

 
19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
  CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

June 18, 2013 

A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on June 18, 2013 at 6:00 pm in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall Present were Mayor Joe R. Brannen, Council Members: Will 
Britt, Phil Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance.  Also present were City Manager 
Frank Parker, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, City Engineer Robert 
Cheshire and Director of Community Development Mandi Cody. 
  
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Joe Brannen 
The Invocation was given by Pastor Lee and Pledge of Allegiance was led John Riggs. 
  
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 06-04-2013 Council Minutes 
b) 06-04-2013 Executive Session Minutes 
c) 06-04-2013 Council Work Session Minutes 

B) Notification of alcohol license application: 
a) Licensee:  William Bradnock David Jr. 

DBA:  Southern Growlers 
Location:  514 South Main Street 
Type of Alcohol License:  Packaged – Beer  
Type of Business:  Draft Beer Sales 

C) Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2013-22: A Resolution to adopt 
the fourth amendment to the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget for each fund of the City 
of Statesboro, Georgia, appropriating the amounts shown in each budget as 
expenditures/expenses, adopting the several items of revenue anticipations, and 
prohibiting expenditures or expenses from exceeding the actual funding 
appropriated 

Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve the 
consent agenda in its entirety. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve an amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement 
for Fire Protection Services 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve an 
amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement for Fire Protection Services. Councilman Britt, 
Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 
vote. 
 
 
 



 
 

Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve the following: 
 
The 2nd reading of Ordinance 2013-07 for Application T 13-05-01: An Ordinance to amend 
portions of Article XV of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding signs. Amendment to 
allow for the use of LED technology in fuel signs 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve the 2nd reading 
of Ordinance 2013-07 for Application T 13-05-01: An Ordinance to amend portions of Article 
XV of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding signs. The Amendment is to allow for the use 
of LED technology in fuel signs. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve the following: 
 

A) APPLICATION # AN 13-03-05:  Waldo M. Beasley Estate requests annexation by 
the 100 percent method of 1.76 acres of property located at 1909 Cawana Road into 
the City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from R40 (Single Family 
Residential Bulloch County) to CR (Commercial Retail) City of Statesboro (Tax 
Parcel Number 107000005D 000). 

Councilman Riggs made a motion to include staffs recommended conditions, seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve APPLICATION # AN 13-03-05:  Waldo M. Beasley 
Estate requests annexation by the 100 percent method of 1.76 acres of property located at 1909 
Cawana Road into the City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from R40 (Single 
Family Residential Bulloch County) to CR (Commercial Retail) City of Statesboro (Tax Parcel 
Number 107000005D 000). . Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor 
of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

B) A motion to approve 2nd reading of Annexation Ordinance 2013-08: An Ordinance 
for annexation by the 100% method filed by the Estate of Waldo M. Beasley to 
annex 1.76 acres of property located at 1909 Cawana Road into the City of 
Statesboro. 

Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 2nd 
reading of Annexation Ordinance 2013-08: An Ordinance for annexation by the 100% method 
filed by the Estate of Waldo M. Beasley to annex 1.76 acres of property located at 1909 Cawana 
Road into the City of Statesboro. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
  
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve the following: 
 

A) APPLICATION # AN 13-03-06:  Waldo M. Beasley Estate requests annexation by 
the 100 percent method of .50 acres of property located at Cawana Road into the 
City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from R40 (Single Family 
Residential Bulloch County) to CR (Commercial Retail) City of Statesboro (Tax 
Parcel Number 107000005B 000). 

Councilman Boyum made a motion with staff recommendations, seconded by Councilman 
Chance to approve APPLICATION # AN 13-03-06:  Waldo M. Beasley Estate requests 
annexation by the 100 percent method of .50 acres of property located at Cawana Road into the 
City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from R40 (Single Family Residential 
Bulloch County) to CR (Commercial Retail) City of Statesboro (Tax Parcel Number 



 
 

107000005B 000). Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

B) A motion to approve 2nd reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-09: An 
Ordinance for annexation by the 100% method filed by the Estate of Waldo M. 
Beasley to annex .5 acres of property located at 1909 Cawana Road into the City of 
Statesboro. 

Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 2nd 
reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-09: An Ordinance for annexation by the 100% 
method filed by the Estate of Waldo M. Beasley to annex .5 acres of property located at 1909 
Cawana Road into the City of Statesboro. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve the following: 
 

A) APPLICATION # AN 13-04-01:  Connection Ministries of Statesboro, Inc., requests 
annexation by the 100 percent method of 13.6 acres of property located on Cawana 
Road into the City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from AG-5 
(Agricultural and Residential Bulloch County) to R-15 (Single-Family Residential). ( 
Tax Map # 107000005 004). 

Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve 
APPLICATION # AN 13-04-01:  Connection Ministries of Statesboro, Inc., requests 
annexation by the 100 percent method of 13.6 acres of property located on Cawana Road into the 
City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from AG-5 (Agricultural and Residential 
Bulloch County) to R-15 (Single-Family Residential) (Tax Map # 107000005 004). Councilman 
Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-
0 vote. 

B) A motion to approve 2nd reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-10: An 
Ordinance for annexation by the 100% method filed by Connection Ministries of 
Statesboro, Inc. to annex 13.6 acres of property located on Cawana Road into the 
City of Statesboro. 

Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 2nd 
reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-10: An Ordinance for annexation by the 100% 
method filed by Connection Ministries of Statesboro, Inc. to annex 13.6 acres of property located 
on Cawana Road into the City of Statesboro. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and 
Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve the following: 
 

A) APPLICATION # AN 13-04-05:  Joseph Akins requests annexation by the 100 
percent method of 1.7 acres of property located at 1965 Cawana Road into the City 
of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from R-40 (Single-Family 
Residential Bulloch County) to R-4 (High Density Residential).  (Tax Map # 
107000005C 000). 

John Dotson of Maxwell Reddick Inc. spoke in favor of the request. Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt 
made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve APPLICATION # AN 13-04-05:  
Joseph Akins requests annexation by the 100 percent method of 1.7 acres of property located at 



 
 

1965 Cawana Road into the City of Statesboro and for said property to be zoned from R-40 
(Single-Family Residential Bulloch County) to R-4 (High Density Residential) (Tax Map # 
107000005C 000). Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 

B) A motion to approve 2nd reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-11: An 
Ordinance for annexation by the 100% method filed by Joseph Akins to annex 1.7 
acres of property located at 1965 Cawana Road into the City of Statesboro. 

Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 2nd 
reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-11: An Ordinance for annexation by the 100% 
method filed by Joseph Akins to annex 1.7 acres of property located at 1965 Cawana Road into 
the City of Statesboro. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve the following: 
 

A) APPLICATION # AN 13-04-06:  City of Statesboro requests annexation by the 
100% method of 7.27 acres of property located at Veterans Memorial bypass and 
for said property to be zoned PUD (Planned Unit Development). (Tax parcel 
number MS630000026 012). 

Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 
APPLICATION # AN 13-04-06:  City of Statesboro requests annexation by the 100% method 
of 7.27 acres of property located at Veterans Memorial bypass and for said property to be zoned 
PUD (Planned Unit Development). (Tax parcel number MS630000026 012). Councilman Britt, 
Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 
vote. 

B) A motion to approve 2nd reading of an Annexation Ordinance 2013-12: An 
Ordinance for annexation by the 100% method filed by the City of Statesboro to 
annex 7.27 acres of property located at Veterans Memorial Bypass into the City of 
Statesboro. 

Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to approve 2nd reading of an 
Annexation Ordinance 2013-12: An Ordinance for annexation by the 100% method filed by the 
City of Statesboro to annex 7.27 acres of property located at Veterans Memorial Bypass into the 
City of Statesboro. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a compressed natural gas (CNG) system relocation 
contract to Wise Gas, Inc. in the amount of $25,000 for the base contract and an additional 
amount not to exceed $10,000 for any additional parts/repairs needed. 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to award a compressed 
natural gas (CNG) system relocation contract to Wise Gas, Inc. in the amount of $25,000 for the 
base contract and an additional amount not to exceed $10,000 for any additional parts/repairs 
needed. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to approve 1st reading of Ordinance 2013-13: An Ordinance 
Amending Certain Sections of ARTICLE II of Chapter 74 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances to increase the excise tax on public lodging.  
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve 1st reading 
of Ordinance 2013-13: An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections of ARTICLE II of Chapter 74 
of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances to increase the excise tax on public lodging. Councilman 
Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-
0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to Tippins-Polk Construction, Inc. in the 
amount of $238,000.00 for the construction of the Natural Gas and Water Department 
equipment shelter on Hill Street 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Riggs to award a contract to 
Tippins-Polk Construction, Inc. in the amount of $238,000.00 for the construction of the Natural 
Gas and Water Department equipment shelter on Hill Street. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, 
Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Planning & Development and Retail Strategies presentment regarding Retail Market 
Analysis, Strategic Planning, and Recruiting. 
Chuck Branch and Charles Branch of Retail Strategies made a presentation to Council regarding 
the recruiting of retail businesses for the City of Statesboro. If the City hired this company for 
the recruitment of new business, the fee would be $36,000.00 for the first year and $18,000.00 
for year 2 and 3 each. There was no action taken on this item. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
Councilman Riggs reminded everyone of “Business After Hours”. Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt 
reminded everyone of the GMA Convention, Tree Board vacancies and the Gentilly Rd 
sidewalk. Councilman Lewis stated the Julius Abraham Trail was near completion.   
 
Public Comments (General): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
Councilman Lewis made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to adjourn. Councilman 
Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-
0 vote. 
 



i

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA

APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE

ffiffisrowp

$1,250.00
$1,250.00
$3,750.00
$1,000.00
$ 150.00
s 1s0.00

CHECK THE TYP9 OF ALCOHOL LICENSE YOU ARE APPLYING
RESTAURANT 'VZ SPORTS RESTAURANT PRIVATE CLUB

BU5TNESS ADDRESS l7-\'L &

FOR:
PACKAGE

h-{
\rD 

r
h,/\

tl
ARE YOU A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED STATES? JVNS 

-

q\L-L+4 -q?\ep

ARRESTED FOR ANYTHING?

NO

YES

IS THE APPLICANT THE owNER oF THE BUSINESS? d YBS NO

-IF NO, WHAT IS YOUR TITLE IN THE BUSINESS?

HOW MANY PARTNERS, SHAREHOLDERS, ETC. ARE INVOLVED IN THE EUSINESS J

PLEASE LIST BELOW:

HAVE YOUR EVER BEEN

IF YES, WHEN AND WHY

DArE oF App'.rcArroN \0l1!f3 *r* X RENE*AL

TYPE OF BUSINESS TO BE OPERATED:
RBTAIL BEER & WINE PACKAGED ONLY
RXTAIL BEER & WINE BY THE DRINK

* BEER, WINE & LIQUOR BY DRINK
WHOLESALE LICENSE
APPLTCATION FEB _ PACKAGED SALES

*- APPLICATION FEE - POURING SALES

APPLICANTS FULL NAME

owNERS NAN{E Y\LAHW
DBA (BUSINESS NAME)

BUSINESS MAILING ADDRESS

BUSINESSTELEPHONE #

APPLICANTS HOME ADDRESS

APPLICANTS HOME PHONE

APPLICANTS AGE



CITY OF STATESBORO
P O BOX 348

STATESBORO, GBORGIA 30459
(9r2)',164_s468

FAX (9r2) 764_4691

APPLICATION FOR VEHICLE FOR IIIRE PERMIT - DRTVER

NAME OF BUSINESS

OWNER OF BUSINESS

DATE

BUSINESS ADDRESS

CITY, STATE & ZW

BUSINESS TELEPHONE

NAME OF DRTVER

HOME ADDRESS

CITY, STATE &, ZTP

HOME TELEPI{ONL

ALIASES

AGE OF DRMER

HAVE YOU EVERBEEN ARRESTED? YES NO

SIGNATURE

DATE

h{"rr

L-t'-'



Registration ID: GAl36EBl2268143

Applicant Name: ROBERT OELLERICH

Applicant Address:

Applicant Phone No.:

Applicant email:

LS TCN: 9133320920

Response Type: STATE RESPONSE

Response Time: 2013-06-20 13:10:23

FBI Number:
I

GBI TCN: 317 12364089998

il
IDent: NO GEORGIA CRIMINAL HISTORY IS

Name: OELLEzuCH. ROBERT ALLEN iIIry
SID: NoRecord

ORI: lGA9230j4Z

Reason: GA Check Only

Agency Name. CITY OF STATESBORO

Agency Address: 50 East Main Street, Statesboro, GA, 30458

Agency Phone: (912)164-062s

Response Body:

TYPE:mid
LSTCN:91 33320920
GBITCN :3 1 7 | 23 64089998
DATE/TIME:2013-06-20 I 6: I 8:32
NAME:OELLERICH. ROBERT ALLEN III
SID:NoRecord
OTN:
OCA:
IDENT:NO GEORGIA CRIMINAL HISTORY IS AVAILABLE FOR THIS REQUEST

Printed: No

Response BodY Page I of I

Response Body

https://www.ga.cogentid.com/perl/rpt_result_detail.pl?Action:Body&ReglD:GA 136E8I .. 612412013



CITY OF STATESBORO
P O BOX 348

STATESBORO. GEORGIA 30459
(gt2) 764-s468

FAX (912)',164-4691

APPLICATION FOR VEIIICLE FOR IIIRE PERMIT - DRTYER

NAME OF BUSINESS LL
OWNER OF BUSINESS

DATE

BUSINESS ADDRESS

CITY, STATE &. ZTP

BUSINESS TELEPHONE

NAME OF DRTVER

HOME ADDRESS

CITY, STATE & ZP

HOME TELEPHONE

ALIASES

AGE OF DRTVER

HAVE YOU EVER BEEN ARRESTED? YES

SIGNATURE

DATE

h{"2/

NO K



Registration lD: GA 1368851359486

Applicant Name: AMANDA KORPONAY

Applicant Address:

Applicant Phone No.:

Applicant email:

LS TCN: 9133330499

Response Type: STATE RESPONSE

Response Time: 2013-06-l I l6:12:21

GBI TCN: 316221 94089995

SAN:

RCode:

RLiteral:

lDent:

Name:

OCA:

SID:

NO GEORGIA CRIMINAL HISTORY

KORPONAY, AMANDA JEAN

NoRecord

IS

oRI: GA9230042

Reason: GA Check Only

Agency Name: CITY OF STATESBORO

Agency Address: 50 East Main Street, Statesboro, GA, 30458

Agency Phone: (912)164-062s

Response Body:

TYPE:mid
LSTCN:9133330499
GBITCN :3 1 62219408999 5

DATE/TIME:201 3-06-l 1 t9:20:48
NAME:KORPONAY, AMAN DA JEAN
SID:NoRecord
OTN:
OCA:
IDENT:NO GEORGIA CRIMINAL HISTORY IS AVAILABLE FOR THIS REQUEST

Printed: No

re9:9-j i- P'i"i*i

Kesponse lf()uy raBsrulr

Response Body

https://www.ga.cogentid.corr/perl/rpt_result_detail.pl?Action:Body&ReglD:GA 1 36885. . 611312013



CITY OF STATESBORO
P O BOX 348

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459
(gr2) 764-s468

FAX (912) 764-4691

APPLICATION FOR VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMIT - DRIVER

DATE

NAME oF BUSINBsS I) til ,l.o il,ew C*b

owNER oF BUSINESS kl"-\ R''d Fto\cQ,=

BUSINESS ADDRESS t Gg ecnuoccd F\".;.s*,o-

cITY, srATE &. zw S tc,\<-sbc*o €q

BUSINESS TELEPHONE q If CI)f I ll|-t3

NAME OF DRIVER

HOME ADDRESS

CITY, STATE & ZIP

HOME TELEPHONE

ALIASES N/ x

AGE OF DRIVER

FIAVE YOU EVER BEEN ARRESTED? YES NO ,--/

SIGNATURE

/" i.'t t / ,2DArE b /*l ( t.?



Cmv op SrarESBoRo
COIINCIL
Phil Boyum
John C- Riggs
William P. Britt
Traris L. Chance
Gary L. Lewis

Joe R. Brannen, Mayor
Frant Parker, City Manager

Sue Starling, City Clerk
J. Alvin kaphart, City Attorney

50 EAST MATN STRNNT: . P.O. BOX 348
SrATnsgoRo, GEoRGIA Bo4b9-0a48

June 25.2013

Business: D W Yellow Cab, 1 Greenwood Avenue, Statesboro
Applicant for driver: Michael Clamion Groomes

The response received from the fingerprints submitted shows the following record on file
for Mr. Groomes:

STATE:

Arrest Date: 6-29-2012
Charge: Marijuana-possess less than 1 oz.
Severity: Misdemeanor
Sentence: Fine - $750.00, Probation 12 months

(Federal records are not searched for this type of license.)

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence . Certffied City of Ethics
Telephone: (gtz) rcq's468 . Fax: (gtz) za+-+691 . email: cityhall@statesborosa.net



CITY OF STATESBORO
P O BOX 348

STATBSBORO, GEORGIA 30459
(9r2) 764-s468

FAX (912) 764-4691

APPLICATION FOR VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMIT - DRIVBR

DATE

NAME oF BUSINESS lt-l $.-t\cOQcb

OWNER OF BUSINESS LJ'.\ f,iv ,d F?errc Cr:s

BUSINESS ADDREsS I Gr<enocrod hverrr<-

crrY, srATE & zrp St<*<;sbor^o

BUSTNESSTELEpHoNp (:g8i - \\AJ

NAME OF DR|VER

HOME ADDRESS

CITY, STATE &. ZTP

HOME TELEPHONE

.,(rALIASES ru I'\

AGE OF DRIVER

HAVE YOU E,VER BEEN ARRESTED? YES No \,/

SIGNATURE

DATE



Registration ID: cA1367836513178

Applicant Name: ISAAC KITCHING

Applicant Address: 332 ZETT'V,,IELL ROAD STATESBORO GA 30458

Applicant Phone No.: 9125317024

Applicant email: zachal1th@gmail.com

LS TCN: 9133320951

Response Type: STATE RESPONSE

Response Time: 2013-06-24 12:42:18

FBI Number:

GBI TCN: 31152159089993

SAN: I

RCode:

RLiteral:

IDent: NO GEORGIA CRIMINAL HISTORY IS

Name: KITCHING, ISAAC FORREST

OCA:

SID: NoRecord

ORI: GA9230042

Reason: GA Check Only

Agency Name: CITY OF STATESBORO

Agency Address: 50 East Main Street, Statesboro, GA, 30458

Agency Phone: (912)164-062s

Response Body:

TYPE:mid
LSTCN:9133320951
GBITCN:3 1 1 52159089993
DATE/TIM F;20 1 3 -06-24 1 5 : 5 5 : 51

NAME:KITCHING, I SAAC FORREST
SID:NoRecord
OTN:
OCA:
IDENT:NO GEORGIA CRIMINAL HISTORY IS AVAILABLE FOR THIS RIQUEST

Printed: No

Response Body Page I of I

Response Body

lrttps://www.ga.cogentid.corn/perl/rpt_result_detail.pl?Action:Body&ReglD:GA1367836... 612512013



ORDINANCE # 2013- 14 
AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY  

INTO THE CITY OF STATESBORO  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia have received and accepted a 
petition from the City of Statesboro, who is the owner of 100 percent of the property to be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 36 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, in order to annex 
property, to provide an effective date, and other provisions, the Mayor and City Council must approve an 
ordinance for annexation; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia, in 
regular session assembled as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  All that certain tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in the 1209th G.M. District of 
Bulloch County, Georgia containing 57.5 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat of survey prepared for_____ and 
by____ dated______ and recorded in Plat Book____, Page____ Bulloch County, Georgia records, said plat being 
incorporated herein by reference and attached hereto is hereby annexed into the City of Statesboro and made a 
part hereof. Said property also being known as Bulloch County tax map parcel MS0700005001. 
 
 Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective on August 1, 2013. 
 
 Section 3. The Director of Planning & Community Development of the City of Statesboro is 
instructed to send a report that includes certified copies of this ordinance, the name of the county in which the 
property being annexed is located and a letter from the City stating the intent to add the annexed area to the 
Census maps during the next survey and stating that the survey map will be completed and returned to the United 
States Census Bureau, Georgia Department of Community Affairs, and to the governing authority of Bulloch 
County, Georgia within thirty (30) days after the effective date of the annexation as set forth in Section 2. 
  

Section 4. On the effective date of the annexation, this property shall be placed in Council District 
Five (5) of the City of Statesboro. 
  

Section 5. This property shall be zoned and located within the City of Statesboro Future 
Development Map pursuant to the vote of the Statesboro City Council to be held on July 16, 2013, subsequent to a 
public hearing regarding the zoning of said property. 
 
 Passed and adopted on two separate readings: 
 First Reading:  July 2, 2013 
 Second Reading:   July 16, 2013 
 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
_______________________   _______________________________ 
Joe R. Brannen, Mayor     Attest:  Sue Starling, City Clerk   



ORDINANCE # 2013- 15: 
AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY  

INTO THE CITY OF STATESBORO  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia have received and accepted a 
petition from the City of Statesboro, who is the owner of 100 percent of the property to be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 36 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, in order to annex 
property, to provide an effective date, and other provisions, the Mayor and City Council must approve an 
ordinance for annexation; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia, in 
regular session assembled as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  All that certain tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in the 1209th G.M. District of 
Bulloch County, Georgia containing 60.92 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat of survey prepared for_____ and 
by____ dated______ and recorded in Plat Book____, Page____ Bulloch County, Georgia records, said plat being 
incorporated herein by reference and attached hereto is hereby annexed into the City of Statesboro and made a 
part hereof. Said property also being known as Bulloch County tax map parcel MS0700005001. 
 
 Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective on August 1, 2013. 
 
 Section 3. The Director of Planning & Community Development of the City of Statesboro is 
instructed to send a report that includes certified copies of this ordinance, the name of the county in which the 
property being annexed is located and a letter from the City stating the intent to add the annexed area to the 
Census maps during the next survey and stating that the survey map will be completed and returned to the United 
States Census Bureau, Georgia Department of Community Affairs, and to the governing authority of Bulloch 
County, Georgia within thirty (30) days after the effective date of the annexation as set forth in Section 2. 
  

Section 4. On the effective date of the annexation, this property shall be placed in Council District 
Five (5) of the City of Statesboro. 
  

Section 5. This property shall be zoned and located within the City of Statesboro Future 
Development Map pursuant to the vote of the Statesboro City Council to be held on July 16, 2013, subsequent to a 
public hearing regarding the zoning of said property. 
 
 Passed and adopted on two separate readings: 
 First Reading:  July 2, 2013 
 Second Reading:   July 16, 2013 
 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
_______________________   _______________________________ 
Joe R. Brannen, Mayor     Attest:  Sue Starling, City Clerk   



ORDINANCE # 2013- 16: 
AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY  

INTO THE CITY OF STATESBORO  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia have received and accepted a 
petition from the City of Statesboro, who is the owner of 100 percent of the property to be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 36 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, in order to annex 
property, to provide an effective date, and other provisions, the Mayor and City Council must approve an 
ordinance for annexation; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia, in 
regular session assembled as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  All that certain tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in the 1209th G.M. District of 
Bulloch County, Georgia containing 68.08 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat of survey prepared for_____ and 
by____ dated______ and recorded in Plat Book____, Page____ Bulloch County, Georgia records, said plat being 
incorporated herein by reference and attached hereto is hereby annexed into the City of Statesboro and made a 
part hereof. Said property also being known as Bulloch County tax map parcel MS0700005001. 
 
 Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective on August 1, 2013. 
 
 Section 3. The Director of Planning & Community Development of the City of Statesboro is 
instructed to send a report that includes certified copies of this ordinance, the name of the county in which the 
property being annexed is located and a letter from the City stating the intent to add the annexed area to the 
Census maps during the next survey and stating that the survey map will be completed and returned to the United 
States Census Bureau, Georgia Department of Community Affairs, and to the governing authority of Bulloch 
County, Georgia within thirty (30) days after the effective date of the annexation as set forth in Section 2. 
  

Section 4. On the effective date of the annexation, this property shall be placed in Council District 
Five (5) of the City of Statesboro. 
  

Section 5. This property shall be zoned and located within the City of Statesboro Future 
Development Map pursuant to the vote of the Statesboro City Council to be held on July 16, 2013, subsequent to a 
public hearing regarding the zoning of said property. 
 
 Passed and adopted on two separate readings: 
 First Reading:  July 2, 2013 
 Second Reading:   July 16, 2013 
 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
_______________________   _______________________________ 
Joe R. Brannen, Mayor     Attest:  Sue Starling, City Clerk   



ORDINANCE # 2013- 17: 
AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY  

INTO THE CITY OF STATESBORO  
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia have received and accepted a 
petition from the City of Statesboro, who is the owner of 100 percent of the property to be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 36 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, in order to annex 
property, to provide an effective date, and other provisions, the Mayor and City Council must approve an 
ordinance for annexation; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia, in 
regular session assembled as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  All that certain tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in the 1209th G.M. District of 
Bulloch County, Georgia containing 38.73 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat of survey prepared for_____ and 
by____ dated______ and recorded in Plat Book____, Page____ Bulloch County, Georgia records, said plat being 
incorporated herein by reference and attached hereto is hereby annexed into the City of Statesboro and made a 
part hereof. Said property also being known as Bulloch County tax map parcel MS107000014000. 
 
 Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective on August 1, 2013. 
 
 Section 3. The Director of Planning & Community Development of the City of Statesboro is 
instructed to send a report that includes certified copies of this ordinance, the name of the county in which the 
property being annexed is located and a letter from the City stating the intent to add the annexed area to the 
Census maps during the next survey and stating that the survey map will be completed and returned to the United 
States Census Bureau, Georgia Department of Community Affairs, and to the governing authority of Bulloch 
County, Georgia within thirty (30) days after the effective date of the annexation as set forth in Section 2. 
  

Section 4. On the effective date of the annexation, this property shall be placed in Council District 
Five (5) of the City of Statesboro. 
  

Section 5. This property shall be zoned and located within the City of Statesboro Future 
Development Map pursuant to the vote of the Statesboro City Council to be held on July 16, 2013, subsequent to a 
public hearing regarding the zoning of said property. 
 
 Passed and adopted on two separate readings: 
 First Reading:  July 2, 2013 
 Second Reading:   July 16, 2013 
 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
_______________________   _______________________________ 
Joe R. Brannen, Mayor     Attest:  Sue Starling, City Clerk   



Ordinance  2013-13 
An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections of ARTICLE II of Chapter 74 of the Statesboro 

Code of Ordinances 
(Local Hotel-Motel Tax) 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance imposing an excise tax on 

public lodging within the City; 
 

 WHEREAS, on April 30, 2013 House Bill 525 was signed into law authorizing the 
governing authority of the City of Statesboro to increase the excise tax levied pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 48-13-50, et seq. for public lodging within the City to SIX PERCENT (6%); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that additional funding is 
necessary to promote and market the City of Statesboro for tourism development; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia, in regular session assembled as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: 
 
Section 74-22 and Section 74-23 of Article II of Chapter 74 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances, City of Statesboro, Georgia is hereby amended by replacing each in full, and shall 
read as follows: 
 
Sec. 74-22. - Tax rate. 
 
There shall be paid for every occupancy of a guest room in a hotel in the city a tax at the rate of 
six percent of the amount of rent unless an exemption is provided under section 74-24.  
 
Sec. 74-23. - Collection of tax by lodging provider. 
 
Every lodging provider renting guest rooms in the city shall collect a tax of six percent on the 
amount of rent from the occupant unless an exemption is provided under section 74-24. The 
lodging provider shall provide a receipt to each occupant, which receipt shall reflect both the 
amount of rent and the amounts of this and other applicable tax(es). This tax shall be due from 
the occupant, and shall be collected by the lodging provider at the same time that the rent is 
collected. The lodging provider shall be liable for any amount of tax that he fails to collect 
appropriately; and must remit to the city any amount of tax collected in excess of that which 
should have been collected.  
 



SECTION 2.  All other sections of Article II of Chapter 74 not expressly amended here remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 3.  Should any section, subsection, or provision of this ordinance be ruled invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, then all other sections, subsections, and provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 4.  This Ordinance shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after its 
adoption on two separate readings. 
 
First Reading        June 18, 2913 
Second Reading    July 02, 2013 
 
THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 

By:  Joe R. Brannen, Mayor    Attest:  Sue Starling, City Clerk 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-23: A RESOLUTION EXEMPTING CERTAIN 
VEHICLES FROM MARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR ONE YEAR 

 
 
 
 
THAT WHEREAS, OCGA 36-80-20 requires that all publicly owned vehicles except those in 

law enforcement or vehicles owned by individuals that are paid with City funds must have a decal on the 
front side panels; and 
 

WHEREAS, OCGA 36-80-20 allows the City Council to exempt vehicles from these provisions 
following a public hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, some employees receive car allowances in lieu of a City vehicle, and desire that 
these vehicles continue to be exempt from the requirements to have decals; and 
 

WHEREAS, the 2001 Session of the General Assembly amended OCGA 36-80-20 to limit the 
duration of such an exemption to one year, requiring an annual exemption instead of doing it one time as 
under the previous statue; and 
 

WHEREAS, the required Public Hearing on this matter was held on July 2nd, 2013; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 
 

Section 1.  That the following employees’ vehicles paid for from car allowances provided as part 
of their compensation are hereby exempted for a period of one year from the requirement to have decals 
on the side panels, as authorized by OCGA 36-80-20: 

  
Director of Water and Wastewater 
Assistant Director of Water and Wastewater 
Director of Natural Gas 
City Engineer 

 
Section 3.  That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of adoption 

 
                                                                                                                         Adopted this 2nd  day of July, 2013 
 
                                                                                                                         CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
                                                                                                                       _____________________________ 
                                                                                                                              By: Joe R. Brannen, Mayor   
 
 
                                                                                                                       _____________________________ 
                                                                                                                            Attest: Sue Starling, City Clerk               



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 This agreement made and entered into on July 2nd, 2013, between the MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City,” and the STATESBORO ARTS COUNCIL, INC., a nonprofit 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia, hereinafter sometimes 
referred to as “SAC”. 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. the City of Statesboro levies a 
6% excise tax on rooms, lodging and accommodations pursuant to subsection  (b) of O.C.G.A. § 
48-13-51 et seq.; 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b) provides that every fiscal year the City of 
Statesboro must spend an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of the total amount of taxes 
collected that exceeds the amount of taxes that would be collected at the rate of 5 promoting 
tourism, conventions and trade shows through a combination of contracts with the state, a 
department of state government, a state authority , a convention and visitors bureau created by a 
local act, or non-profit private sector organizations that promotes tourism, conventions and trade 
shows; 

WHEREAS, the STATESBORO ARTS COUNCIL, INC. is a private sector nonprofit 
organization which engages in the promotion of tourism, conventions, and trade shows in the 
City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the services of the STATESBORO ARTS 
COUNCIL, INC. to promote, attract, stimulate and develop conventions and tourism in the City 
of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars ($10.00) paid by the City 
to the STATESBORO ARTS COUNCIL, INC., the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and in the consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions 
contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1.   

  The SAC shall on behalf of the City of Statesboro  promote, attract, stimulate and 
develop conventions and tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County, providing such 
consulting, advertising, marketing, and administrative services as may be necessary or 
appropriate to accomplish the foregoing purposes. 

 

 



2. 

 As compensation for said services, the City shall pay to the SAC TWENTY EIGHT 
PERCENT (28%) of the amount by which the Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to 
City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. Said funds shall be paid monthly to the SAC and within thirty 
(30) days from the receipt of said tax revenue by the City. 

3. 

 The term of this agreement shall be for one (1) year, to commence on the 1st day of July, 
2013, and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2014 unless sooner terminated upon thirty (30) days 
written notice by either party. 

4. 

 The SAC Director shall furnish the City with a copy of the SAC’s proposed Budget for 
each fiscal year (including the program of work to be accomplished by this funding for the next 
fiscal year, and any multi-year programming) at least three (3) weeks before its scheduled 
adoption date by the SAC Board.  The City Manager shall provide the SAC Board and the Mayor 
and City Council comments on the Budget at least seven (7) days before the scheduled adoption 
date.  This same procedure is agreed to for any subsequent amendments to the Budget during any 
fiscal year. 

5.   

 The SAC shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate records and accounts showing 
the receipts and disbursements of all amounts received from the City pursuant to this contract.  
The SAC shall furnish an annual report to the City containing a complete financial statement and 
summary of the work performed by the SAC pursuant to the terms of the contract.  Said report 
shall be furnished to the City on or before the 1st day of September for each year.  The City or 
any person authorized by the City may examine and audit the books and records of the SAC at 
any time during regular business hours.  The SAC shall provide the City a copy of its annual 
audit, performed by an outside certified public accountant, within five (5) days of receipt of the 
audit, or December 31st, whichever is earlier.  The SAC director shall furnish the City with 
minutes of any meeting of the Board and any committees within two weeks of said meeting. 

6.   

 The SAC shall have the authority to enter into subcontracts or other agreements for 
administrative, accounting, and other services necessary to carry out the terms of this agreement. 

7. 



 The parties hereto agree to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the 
intentions expressed in the agreement, and agree to join in any and all proceedings of any nature, 
legal or otherwise, should the same be necessary to carry out the intentions expressed herein. 

8.   

 During FY 2014 the SAC agrees to work cooperatively with the Main Street Program and 
the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. to develop a joint marketing program to 
better coordinate the limited resources available for marketing the Statesboro area, particularly 
the Averitt Center and other downtown attractions.  A report outlining the program shall be 
forwarded to the City upon approval by all three entities. 

9.  

 This agreement is being delivered and is intended to be performed in the State of Georgia 
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

10. 

 All notices to the City shall be sent by registered or certified mail addressed to the City 
Manager, P.O. Box 348, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such other address as the City shall 
designate in writing.  All notices to the SAC shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Executive Director of the SAC at 33 East Main Street, Statesboro, Georgia 30458 or such 
address as the SAC shall designate in writing.  Notwithstanding any provision in this agreement 
to the contrary concerning modifications, a change in address may be effected by a registered or 
certified letter sent by either part to the other. 

11.   

 If any term or provision of this agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons whose circumstances are other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

12.  

 This contact constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties.  No 
modifications hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each party, and no 
representations, promises, or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as herein 
stated. 

13. 



 The parties hereby warrant and represent that each has the right, power, and authority to 
enter into this agreement and by entering into this agreement, such party will not be violating any 
other contract, agreement, order, judgment, decree, or document, written or oral, to which it is a 
party or by which it is bound. 

 

     MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO 

 

                                                     By:     _______________________________ 
                               Mayor 
 

       Attest:  ________________________________ 
              City Clerk 
 
 
    STATESBORO ARTS COUNCIL, INC. 
 
 
               By:        ___________________________________ 
                                                                                              President 
 
                                                           Attest:   ___________________________________ 

                            Secretary 

 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 This agreement made and entered into on July 2nd, 2013, between the MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City,” and the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, a governmental authority organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Georgia, hereinafter sometimes referred to as “DSDA”. 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. the City of Statesboro levies a 
6% excise tax on rooms, lodging and accommodations pursuant to subsection  (b) of O.C.G.A. § 
48-13-51 et seq.; 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b) provides that every fiscal year the City of 
Statesboro must spend an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of the total amount of taxes 
collected that exceeds the amount of taxes that would be collected at the rate of 5 percent 
promoting tourism, conventions and trade shows through a combination of contracts with the 
state, a department of state government, a state authority , a convention and visitors bureau 
created by a local act, or non-profit private sector organizations that promotes tourism, 
conventions and trade shows; 

WHEREAS, the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY is a 
governmental authority which engages in the promotion of tourism, conventions, and trade 
shows in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the services of the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY to promote, attract, stimulate and develop conventions and 
tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars ($10.00) paid by the City 
to the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in the consideration of the mutual promises, 
covenants, and conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1.   

 The DSDA shall on behalf of the City of Statesboro  promote, attract, stimulate and 
develop conventions and tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County, providing such 
consulting, advertising, marketing, and administrative services as may be necessary or 
appropriate to accomplish the foregoing purposes. 

 

 



2. 

 As compensation for said services, the City shall pay to the DSDA TWENTY PERCENT 
(20%) of the amount by which the Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to City 
Ordinances §74-32 et seq.  Said funds shall be paid monthly to the DSDA and within thirty (30) 
days from the receipt of said tax revenue by the City.   

3. 

 The term of this agreement shall be for one (1) year, to commence on the 1st day of July, 
2013, and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2014 unless sooner terminated upon thirty (30) days 
written notice by either party. 

4. 

 The DSDA Director shall furnish the City with a copy of the DSDA’s proposed Budget 
for each fiscal year (including the program of work to be accomplished by this funding for the 
next fiscal year, and any multi-year programming) at least three (3) weeks before its scheduled 
adoption date by the DSDA Board.  The City Manager shall provide the DSDA Board and the 
Mayor and City Council comments on the Budget at least seven (7) days before the scheduled 
adoption date.  This same procedure is agreed to for any subsequent amendments to the Budget 
during any fiscal year. 

5.   

 The DSDA shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate records and accounts showing 
the receipts and disbursements of all amounts received from the City pursuant to this contract.  
The DSDA shall furnish an annual report to the City containing a complete financial statement 
and summary of the work performed by the DSDA pursuant to the terms of the contract.  Said 
report shall be furnished to the City on or before the 1st day of September for each year.  The 
City or any person authorized by the City may examine and audit the books and records of the 
DSDA at any time during regular business hours.  The DSDA shall provide the City a copy of its 
annual audit, performed by an outside certified public accountant, within five (5) days of receipt 
of the audit, or December 31st, whichever is earlier.  The DSDA director shall furnish the City 
with minutes of any meeting of the Board and any committees within two weeks of said meeting. 

6.   

 The DSDA shall have the authority to enter into subcontracts or other agreements for 
administrative, accounting, and other services necessary to carry out the terms of this agreement. 

7. 



 The parties hereto agree to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the 
intentions expressed in the agreement, and agree to join in any and all proceedings of any nature, 
legal or otherwise, should the same be necessary to carry out the intentions expressed herein. 

8.   

 During FY 2014 the DSDA agrees to work cooperatively with the Main Street Program 
and the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to develop a joint marketing program to better coordinate 
the limited resources available for marketing the Statesboro area, particularly the Averitt Center 
and other downtown attractions.  A report outlining the program shall be forwarded to the City 
upon approval by all three entities. 

9.  

 This agreement is being delivered and is intended to be performed in the State of Georgia 
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

10. 

 All notices to the City shall be sent by registered or certified mail addressed to the City 
Manager, P.O. Box 348, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such other address as the City shall 
designate in writing.  All notices to the DSDA shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Executive Director of the DSDA at 10 Siebald, Statesboro, Georgia 30458, or at such address as 
the DSDA shall designate in writing.  Notwithstanding any provision in this agreement to the 
contrary concerning modifications, a change in address may be effected by a registered or 
certified letter sent by either part to the other. 

11.   

 If any term or provision of this agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons whose circumstances are other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

12.  

 This contact constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties.  No 
modifications hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each party, and no 
representations, promises, or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as herein 
stated. 

13. 



 The parties hereby warrant and represent that each has the right, power, and authority to 
enter into this agreement and by entering into this agreement, such party will not be violating any 
other contract, agreement, order, judgment, decree, or document, written or oral, to which it is a 
party or by which it is bound. 

 

     MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO 

 

                                                     By:     _______________________________ 
                               Mayor 
 

       Attest:  ________________________________ 
              City Clerk 
 
 
    DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
               By:        ___________________________________ 
                                                                                              President 
 
                                                           Attest:   ___________________________________ 

                            Secretary 

 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 This agreement made and entered into on July 2nd, 2013, between the MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City,” and the STATESBORO CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, 
INC., a nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia, 
hereinafter sometimes referred to as “SCVB”. 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. the City of Statesboro levies a 
6% excise tax on rooms, lodging and accommodations pursuant to subsection  (b) of O.C.G.A. § 
48-13-51 et seq.;   

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-13-51(b) provides that every fiscal year the City of 
Statesboro must spend an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of the total amount of taxes 
collected that exceeds the amount of taxes that would be collected at the rate of 5 percent 
promoting tourism, conventions and trade shows through a combination of contracts with the 
state, a department of state government, a state authority , a convention and visitors bureau 
created by a local act, or non-profit private sector organizations that promotes tourism, 
conventions and trade shows; 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. is a private sector 
nonprofit organization which engages in the promotion of tourism, conventions, and trade shows 
in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the services of the Statesboro Convention & 
Visitors Bureau, Inc. to promote, attract, stimulate and develop conventions and tourism in the 
City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars ($10.00) paid by the City 
to the Statesboro Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc., the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, and in the consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 
conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1.   

 The SCVB shall on behalf of the City of Statesboro  promote, attract, stimulate and 
develop conventions and tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County, providing such 
consulting, advertising, marketing, and administrative services as may be necessary or 
appropriate to accomplish the foregoing purposes. 

 

 



2. 

 As compensation for said services, the City shall pay to the SCVB THIRTY TWO 
PERCENT (32%) of the amount by which the Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to 
City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. Said funds shall be paid monthly to the SCVB and within thirty 
(30) days from the receipt of said tax revenue by the City.  

3. 

 The term of this agreement shall be for one (1) year, to commence on the 1st day of July, 
2013, and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2014 unless sooner terminated upon thirty (30) days 
written notice by either party. 

4. 

 The SCVB Director shall furnish the City with a copy of the SCVB’s proposed Budget 
for each fiscal year (including the program of work to be accomplished by this funding for the 
next fiscal year, and any multi-year programming) at least three (3) weeks before its scheduled 
adoption date by the SCVB Board.  The City Manager shall provide the SCVB Board and the 
Mayor and City Council comments on the Budget at least seven (7) days before the scheduled 
adoption date.  This same procedure is agreed to for any subsequent amendments to the Budget 
during any fiscal year. 

5.   

 The SCVB shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate records and accounts showing 
the receipts and disbursements of all amounts received from the City pursuant to this contract.  
The SCVB shall furnish an annual report to the City containing a complete financial statement 
and summary of the work performed by the SCVB pursuant to the terms of the contract.  Said 
report shall be furnished to the City on or before the 1st day of September for each year.  The 
City or any person authorized by the City may examine and audit the books and records of the 
SCVB at any time during regular business hours.  The SCVB shall provide the City a copy of its 
annual audit, performed by an outside certified public accountant, within five (5) days of receipt 
of the audit, or December 31st, whichever is earlier.  The SCVB director shall furnish the City 
with minutes of any meeting of the Board and any committees within two weeks of said meeting. 

6.   

 The SCVB shall have the authority to enter into subcontracts or other agreements for 
administrative, accounting, and other services necessary to carry out the terms of this agreement. 

7. 



 The parties hereto agree to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the 
intentions expressed in the agreement, and agree to join in any and all proceedings of any nature, 
legal or otherwise, should the same be necessary to carry out the intentions expressed herein. 

8.   

 During FY 2014 the SCVB agrees to work cooperatively with the Main Street Program 
and the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to develop a joint marketing program to better coordinate 
the limited resources available for marketing the Statesboro area, particularly the Averitt Center 
and other downtown attractions.  A report outlining the program shall be forwarded to the City 
upon approval by all three entities. 

9.  

 This agreement is being delivered and is intended to be performed in the State of Georgia 
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

10. 

 All notices to the City shall be sent by registered or certified mail addressed to the City 
Manager, P.O. Box 348, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such other address as the City shall 
designate in writing.  All notices to the SCVB shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Executive Director of the SCVB at P.O. Box 1516, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such address 
as the SCVB shall designate in writing.  Notwithstanding any provision in this agreement to the 
contrary concerning modifications, a change in address may be effected by a registered or 
certified letter sent by either part to the other. 

11.   

 If any term or provision of this agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons whose circumstances are other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

12.  

 This contact constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties.  No 
modifications hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each party, and no 
representations, promises, or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as herein 
stated. 

13. 



 The parties hereby warrant and represent that each has the right, power, and authority to 
enter into this agreement and by entering into this agreement, such party will not be violating any 
other contract, agreement, order, judgment, decree, or document, written or oral, to which it is a 
party or by which it is bound. 

 

     MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO 

 

                                                     By:     _______________________________ 
                               Mayor 
 

       Attest:  ________________________________ 
              City Clerk 
 
 
    STATESBORO CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU, INC. 
 
 
               By:        ___________________________________ 
                                                                                              President 
 
                                                           Attest:   ___________________________________ 

                            Secretary 

 










































	07-02-2013 Council Agenda
	06-18-2013 Council Minutess
	2013 Alcohol Robinson
	2013 vehicle for hire
	2013 vehicle for hire 2
	2013-14 Ordinance  AN 13-03-07
	2013-15 Ordinance annexation AN 13-03-08 Ordinance
	2013-16 Ordinance AN 13-03-09 Ordinance
	2013-17 Ordinance AN 13-03-10 Ordinance
	2013-13  Ordinance Hotel Motel ARTICLE II of Chapter 74 Amendment
	WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance imposing an excise tax on public lodging within the City;

	2013-23  RESOLUTION   vehicle markings
	2013 CONTRACT FOR SERVICES--SAC FY 2014
	2013 CONTRACT FOR SERVICES--DSDA FY 2014
	2013 CONTRACT FOR SERVICES--SCVB FY 2014
	2013 Gas Expansion Project00042720130627092403
	2013 Infrastructure bid
	2013 Elevated tank bid

